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Explanatory Note

On November 2, 2017, Guidewire Software, Inc. (the "Company") filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the "Original Form 8-K") reporting that on
November 1, 2017, the Company completed its acquisition of Cyence Inc. (“Cyence”). This Form 8-K/A amends the Original Form 8-K to include the
historical audited financial statements of Cyence, unaudited condensed interim financial statements of Cyence, and the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information required by Items 9.01(a) and 9.01(b) of Form 8-K that were excluded from the Original Form 8-K in reliance on the
instructions to such items, and are filed as exhibits hereto. All other items in the Original Report remain the same.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Audited Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired.

The audited financial statements of Cyence as of and for the year ended January 31, 2017 are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.1. The consent of BDO
USA, LLP, Cyence's independent auditors, are filed herewith as Exhibit 23.1.

(b) Unaudited Condensed Interim Financial Statements of Business Acquired.

The unaudited condensed interim financial statements of Cyence as of and for the six months ended July 31, 2017 are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.2.

(c) Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information of the Company as of and for the year ended July 31, 2017 giving effect to the
acquisition of Cyence are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.3.

(d) Exhibits.
Exhibit No. Description of Exhibits
2.1* Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, by and among Guidewire Software, Inc., Caesar Acquisition Sub I, Inc., Caesar
Acquisition Sub II, LLC., and Shareholder Representative Services, LLC, dated October 5, 2017.
23.1 Consent of BDO, LLP, Independent Auditors.
99.1 Audited financial statements of Cyence as of and for the year ended January 31, 2017.
99.2 Unaudited condensed interim financial statements of Cyence as of and for the six months ended July 31, 2017.
99.3 Unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information of Guidewire Software, Inc. as of and for the year ended July 31,

2017.

* Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 filed with registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 2, 2017.


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1528396/000119312517331092/d487153dex21.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Date: January 8, 2018

GUIDEWIRE SOFTWARE, INC.

By: /s/ Richard Hart

Richard Hart
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Auditors

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S3 (No. 333-191856 and 333-191834)
and Form S-8 (No. 333-216530, 333-209906, 333-202541, 333-179799, 333-187004, and 333-194290) of Guidewire Software, Inc.
of our report dated October 5, 2017, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Cyence, Inc. as of January 31, 2017 and for

the year then ended, which appears in this Form 8K/A.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
San Jose, California
January 8, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Cyence, Inc.
San Mateo, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cyence, Inc. and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
January 31, 2017 and the related consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss, change in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cyence, Inc. and its

subsidiaries as of January 31, 2017, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
San Jose, California
October 5, 2017



Cyence, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(in thousands, except par value and shares data)

January 31, 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,345
Accounts receivable, net 2,331
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 976
Total current assets 28,652
Property and equipment, net 135
Deposits and other non-current assets 359
Goodwill 148
Total assets $ 29,294
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 510
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 1,941
Deferred revenue, current 3,217
Total current liabilities 5,668
Total liabilities 5,668
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders' equity
Series A convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 16,666,663 shares authorized; 16,666,663 shares issued and outstanding
(liquidation preference: $5,800) 5,709
Series B convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 13,972,054 shares authorized; 12,779,576 shares issued and outstanding
(liquidation preference: $32,013) 31,807
Common Stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 authorized; and 13,516,269 issued and outstanding 12
Additional paid in capital 254
Stockholders' notes receivable (see Note 7) (60)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 2
Accumulated deficit (14,094)
Total stockholders' deficit 23,626
Total liabilities and stockholder deficit $ 29,294

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




Cyence, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
(in thousands)

Year ended January

31, 2017
Revenue $ 8,125
Cost of revenue 1,102
Gross profit 7,023
Operating expenses:
Research and development 9,366
Selling and marketing 3,606
General and administrative 1,979
Total operating expenses 14,951
Operating loss (7,928)
Other income (expenses):
Interest and other income, net 1
Loss before income taxes (7,927)
Provision for income taxes 35
Net loss $ (7,962)
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2
Total other comprehensive loss (2)
Comprehensive loss $ (7,964)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Cyence, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
(in thousands, except shares data)

Series A Series B Common Stock Total
Shareholder Notes Additional Accumulated Other ~ Accumulated ~ Stockholders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Receivable Paid-in Capital Comprehensive Loss Deficit Equity
Balances, February 1, 2016 16,666,663 $ 5,709 0 $ — 12,563,893 $ 12 $ — $ 50 $ — 3 (6,132) $ (361)
Issuance of Series B convertible
stock net of issuance costs of $173 0 0 10,219,560 25,427 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,427
Conversion of convertible debt to
Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock 0 0 2,560,016 5,130 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,130
Debt discount upon conversion of
debt to Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock 0 0 0 1,250 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,250
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of stock options 0 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 2 0 0 2
Issuance of common stock upon
early exercise of stock options 0 0 0 0 70,209 0 0 0 0 0 0
Vesting of early exercised stock
options 0 0 0 0 950,236 0 0 69 0 0 69
Issuance of shareholder notes
receivable 0 0 0 0 0 0 (60) 0 0 0 (60)
Repurchase of common stock 0 0 0 0 (70,209) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stock-based compensation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 133 0 0 133
Foreign currency translation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ) 0 )
Net loss 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (7,962) (7,962)
Balances, January 31, 2017 16,666,663 $ 5,709 12,779,576 $ 31,807 13,516,629 $ 12 $ (60) $ 254 $ 2) $ (14,094) $ 23,626

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation
Accrued interest on debt converted to equity

Cyence, Inc.

(in thousands)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of businesses acquired:

Accounts receivable

Other current assets and long-term assets
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchases of property and equipment, net
Payment of acquisition of Psiog, net of cash acquired

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from early exercises of common stock options
Proceeds from exercises of common stock options
Proceeds from Series B, net of issuance costs
Payments to repurchase early exercised stock options

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Vesting of early exercised stock options

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year ended January
31, 2017

$ (7,962)

50
133
130

(1,748)

(546)
260
978

(7)
1,374

(7,338)

(75)
(144)

(219)

39

25,427
4)

25,464

@

17,905

7,440

$ 25,345

$ 69



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Description of Business
Organization

Cyence, Inc. (with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “the Company”) was incorporated on August 20, 2014 in the state of Delaware under the name
of CyberSkore, Inc. and was renamed Cyence, Inc. on September 18, 2014. The Company is a cloud-based provider of economic cyber risk modeling services
that quantifies cyber risk in probabilities and dollars. The Company brings together data science, cybersecurity, and economics to build a unique analytics
platform that quantifies the financial impact of cyber risk. The Company’s services are used by leaders across the insurance industry to prospect and select
risks, assess and price risks, manage risk portfolios and accumulations, and bring new insurance products to market. The Company’s customers include
insurance brokers, rating agencies, regulators, insurers, and reinsurers.

The Company is headquartered in San Mateo, California with operations in New York, New York; Chennai, India; and London, United Kingdom.
Liquidity

The Company has experienced recurring losses since its inception and has an accumulated deficit of $14.1 million as of January 31, 2017. The Company
experienced losses of $9.2 million for the year ended January 31, 2017. As of January 31, 2017, the Company has raised $36.1 million from debt financing
and two rounds of preferred stock financing. The Company’s operating plans include business objectives to continue to increase revenues, control expenses
and expand business lines. Accordingly, the Company may need to raise additional debt or equity to reach these business objectives. Failure to achieve the
Company’s business objectives could adversely affect cash and working capital. Additionally, the Company may not be able to obtain further financing to
fund operations in the future, or at terms that are acceptable to the Company. Management believes that the Company’s current cash resources, augmented by
possible future financing and/or business rationalization, will be adequate to meet its needs for the next twelve months. Management believes that its
operating plans alleviate the substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic industry, and accordingly, can be affected by a variety of factors. Management of the Company believes that changes in
any of the following areas could have a significant negative effect on the Company in terms of its future financial position, results of operations or cash flows:
ability to obtain additional financing; advances and trends in new technologies and industry standards; changes in certain strategic relationships or customer
relationships; market acceptance of the Company's products; continued development of sales channels; litigation or other claims against the Company; the
hiring, training and retention of key employees; and new product introductions by competitors.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cyence, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, SM Insurance Solutions LLC (incorporated in
the State of Delaware, U.S.), Cyence India Private Limited (incorporated in India), and Cyence Ltd (incorporated in the U.K.). The Company has eliminated
all intercompany accounts and transactions. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in U.S. dollars and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and the related disclosures regarding these items. Significant items subject to such estimates and
assumptions include, but are not limited to: the best estimate of selling price of the deliverables included in multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements; the
collectability of accounts receivable; the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed for business combinations; the realizability of deferred tax assets;
the fair value of stock-



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

based awards and related forfeiture rates; and the capitalization and estimated useful life of software development costs.

Concentrations

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company deposits its cash and cash equivalents with major financial institutions that management believes are of high credit quality;

however, at times, balances exceed federally insured limits.

As of January 31, 2017, three customers represented 32%, 28%, and 18%, respectively, of total gross accounts receivable. For the year ended January 31,
2017, two customers represented 19% and 10%, respectively, of total revenue.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. As
of January 31, 2017, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market accounts with banks of $25.3 million. The carrying amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of the maturities.

Restricted Cash

The Company has classified as restricted, certain cash and cash equivalents that are not available for use in its operations. At January 31, 2017, the Company

had restricted cash of $125,000 for its credit cards with a bank and $106,000 as security deposits for its offices. The Company classifies restricted cash
balances within deposits and other non-current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet based upon the term of the remaining restrictions.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the relatively short-term
maturities and are classified as short-term assets and liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. See Note 3, Fair Value Measurements, for the
fair value measurements.

Accounts Receivable, Unbilled Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under specific customer agreements and/or contracts. Payment terms vary with each
customer, but the majority of contracts provide for payment within 30 - 90 days of invoice date with no discounts offered.

Unbilled accounts receivable represents revenue recognized but amounts not yet invoiced due to contract terms, timing of customers’ self-reporting of
variable consideration, or timing of the invoicing cycle. As of January 31, 2017, unbilled accounts receivable was $1.3 million.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is determined based on specific identification of balances, the collection of which, in management’s opinion, is doubtful.
After all attempts to collect a receivable have failed, the receivable is written off against the allowance. As of January 31, 2017, the Company recorded an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $17,000.

Property and Equipment

The Company records property and equipment at cost. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of three to seven
years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease or the useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter.
Upon sale or retirement of an asset, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the general ledger and any related gains or losses are
reflected in operating expenses. Maintenance and repairs expenditures are charged to the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss as
incurred.

Software Development Costs

-7-



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s software development costs are accounted for under the guidance for internal use software development costs. The costs incurred in the
preliminary stages of development are expensed as incurred. Once an application has reached the development stage, if: (1) the costs are direct and
incremental and (2) management has determined that it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the function
intended, internal and external costs are capitalized until the application is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. Because the majority of the
Company’s development efforts are categorized in the operation stage, do not result in additional functionality, or have an estimated useful life no greater than
one year, no costs have been capitalized to date. The costs cannot be reasonably separated on a cost-effective basis because the Company does not
differentiate development efforts or processes between the effort spent on post-implementation activities and the effort spent on additional features or
functionalities. These costs are included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss as research and development
expenses.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the
asset to the future estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. No impairment of long-lived assets was
recorded during the year ended January 31, 2017.

Deferred Rent Obligations

The Company accounts for rent expense under non-cancelable operating leases with scheduled rent increases on a straight-line basis over the lease term
beginning with the effective lease commencement date. The excess of straight-line rent expense over scheduled payment amounts is recorded as a deferred
rent obligation.

Business Combinations

The Company recognizes identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date. While the Company uses its best estimates and
assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, these estimates are inherently
uncertain and subject to refinement. The authoritative guidance allows a measurement period of up to one year from the date of the acquisition to make
adjustments to the preliminary allocation of the purchase price. As a result, during the measurement period, the Company may record adjustments to the fair
values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill to the extent that it identifies adjustments to the preliminary
purchase price allocation. Upon conclusion of the measurement period or final determination of the values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in connection with business combinations accounted for using
the purchase method of accounting.

Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment at least annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. The Company has one reporting unit and evaluates goodwill for impairment at the consolidated entity level. The Company completed the
annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended January 31, 2017, which did not result in any impairment of the goodwill balance.
Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from two sources:

-8-



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Subscription services - Subscription revenue consists of subscription fees from customers for access to the Company’s cloud-based platform and
variable consideration from customers calculated as a percentage of gross premiums written by customers during the subscription term. The
contractual term is generally one to three years.

2. Consulting services - Consulting services consist of fees associated with risk assessments and written report documentation as agreed upon in the
corresponding service agreement. The Company’s consulting services contracts are offered at a fixed fee or on a time and materials basis, and are
generally delivered within one year of the date of the arrangement. Revenue derived from consulting services is immaterial for the year ended
January 31, 2017.

Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are met:

*  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

»  The service has been or is being provide to the customer;
*  Fees are fixed or determinable; and

*  Collectability is reasonably assured.

Multiple Deliverable Arrangements

Revenue from customers is generated under sales agreements with multiple deliverables, comprised of subscription services and associated support services,
such as free best-use training and as-needed access to a solution architect. For these multiple deliverable arrangements, the Company evaluates whether the
individual deliverables qualify as separate units of accounting. In order to treat deliverables in a multiple-deliverable arrangement as separate units of
accounting, the deliverables must have standalone value upon delivery. The Company has determined that the support services do not have standalone value
independent of the subscription services. In determining the best estimated selling price of the subscription offerings, the Company analyzes market
conditions and its overall pricing practices. The Company has determined that the best estimate of the selling price of its subscription services approximates
the actual selling prices of the offerings. Revenue is recognized based on consideration of the subscription services, which represents the predominant
deliverable in the arrangement.

Fees for the subscription and associated services within multiple deliverable arrangements are non-contingent and are recognized over the contractual term of
the arrangement beginning on the date that the service is made available to the customer. Our subscription arrangements are considered service contracts, and
the customer does not have the right to take possession of the software.

In addition to fixed subscription fees, subscription contracts may also include variable consideration ranging from 1% to 4% of gross premiums written by
customers during the subscription term. The customer is obligated to provide information related to gross written premiums to the Company annually at the
end of each subscription year, when the variable consideration is generally due and payable. The Company does not recognize variable revenue until the end
of each annual subscription term, when the variable fees are fixed and determinable.

Cost of Revenue
Cost of subscription revenue primarily consists of direct expenses related to hosting the Company's service and providing support to the Company's
customers. These expenses are comprised of third-party web hosting costs, data and software license subscription costs, and personnel-related expenses

associated with hosting our subscription services and providing support consisting of allocated salaries, benefits, and travel costs.

Cost of consulting services consists primarily of the cost of third-party subcontractors or personnel-related costs associated with providing these services,
including salaries and benefits. These costs are generally expensed as incurred.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of billings or payments received in advance of revenue recognition and are recognized as the revenue recognition criteria are met.
The Company generally invoices its customers annually or in quarterly installments payable in advance.

-9-



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Accordingly, the deferred revenue balance does not represent the total contract value of annual or multi-year, noncancelable arrangements. The current
portion of deferred revenue represents the amount that is expected to be recognized as revenue within one year from the balance sheet date. The Company did
not have any long-term deferred revenue as of January 31, 2017.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was immaterial for the year ended January 31, 2017.
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all stock options based on the estimate of fair value of the award at the grant date. The fair value of each
option award is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. As required by the model, at the date of grant, the Company
determines the fair value of the underlying common stock, the expected term of the award, the expected volatility of the price of comparable public
companies, risk-free interest rates, and expected dividend yield. At the time of grant, the Company also estimates forfeitures based on an analysis of actual
historical forfeitures, and revises, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The compensation expense, net of
estimated forfeitures, is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period.

Comprehensive Loss

Items of other comprehensive income are defined as revenues, expenses, gains, and losses that under GAAP are included in comprehensive income but are
excluded from net loss, as these amounts are recorded directly as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity. Net loss and other comprehensive income items are
reported, net of their related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income. The Company’s other comprehensive income is comprised solely of unrealized
gain and losses on foreign exchange translation adjustments.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company's subsidiary in India is the Indian Rupee. The functional currency of the Company's subsidiary in the U.K. is the
British Pound. Foreign currency re-measurement and transaction gains and losses are recorded in other expenses, net. The Company recognized an immaterial
foreign currency transaction loss during the year ended January 31, 2017.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using an asset and liability approach. Under this method, the tax provision includes taxes currently due plus the net
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from the temporary differences between the tax basis of an asset or
liability and its reported amount in the financial statements, as well as from net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax amounts are
determined by using the tax rates expected to be in effect when the taxes will actually be paid or refund received, as provided for under currently enacted tax
law. A valuation allowance is provided for the amount of deferred tax assets that, based on available evidence, is not expected to be realized.

For financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. The impact of an uncertain income tax position on the income
tax return is recognized at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax
position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In May 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2017-09, Compensation-Stock
Compensation (Topic 718), which provides guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require an entity to

apply modification accounting in Topic 718. ASU 2017-09 becomes effective for the Company in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, with early
adoption permitted. The standard should be applied

-10-



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

prospectively to an award modified on or after the adoption date. The Company is evaluating the impact of this ASU to its consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Accounting for Goodwill Impairment, which
simplifies the accounting for goodwill impairment. The guidance removes step two of the goodwill impairment test, which requires a hypothetical purchase
price allocation. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying
amount of goodwill. Entities will continue to have the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine if a quantitative impairment test is necessary.
The standard should be applied prospectively. ASU 2017-04 becomes effective for the Company for their annual goodwill impairment test in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted for annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The
Company early-adopted this standard in January 2017, and there was no material impact to its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures upon
adoption of this ASU.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows: Restricted Cash, that will require entities to show the changes in the total of
cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows and disclose the nature of their restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalent balances. As a result, entities will no longer present transfers between cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and restricted
cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. When cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents are presented in more than one
line item on the balance sheet, the new guidance requires a reconciliation of the totals in the statement of cash flows to the related captions in the balance
sheet. ASU 2016-18 becomes effective for the Company in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is
evaluating the impact of this ASU to its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, which clarifies how certain cash receipts and
cash payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 is effective for the Company for annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of this ASU to its consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which simplifies several aspects of the
accounting for employee share-based payment transactions for both public and nonpublic entities, including the accounting for income taxes, forfeitures, and
statutory tax withholding requirements, as well as classification in the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 is effective for the Company for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of this ASU to its consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which provides guidance for accounting for leases. Under ASU 2016-02, the Company
will be required to recognize the assets and liabilities for rights and obligations created by leased assets. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of this ASU to its consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, which simplifies the
presentation of deferred income taxes and requires that deferred income tax liabilities and assets be presented as a net non-current deferred tax asset or
liability by jurisdiction on the balance sheet. The current requirement that deferred tax assets and liabilities of a tax-paying component of an entity be offset
and presented as a single amount is unchanged. ASU 2015-17 is effective for the Company for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted for all entities for any annual financial statements that have not been issued. The Company early adopted the
standard as of February 1, 2016 on a prospective basis. Adoption of this ASU did not affect the presentation of net deferred tax assets in our Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2017 because management believes it is more likely than not that all of its net deferred tax assets may be realized in the
future.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-05, Customer's Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement. The update provides guidance on
whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license. If a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license, then the customer should
account for the software license element of the arrangement consistent with the acquisition of other software licenses. If a cloud computing arrangement does
not include a software license, the customer should account for the arrangement as a service contract. ASU 2015-05 is effective for fiscal years, beginning
after December 15,
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2015. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2015-05 in the year ended January 31, 2017 retrospectively. The adoption of ASU 2015-05
did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. The update requires debt issuance costs related to a
recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability instead of being
presented as an asset. The update requires retrospective application. ASU 2015-03 is effective for fiscal years, and interim reporting periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2015-03 in the year ended January 31, 2017. The
adoption of ASU 2015-03 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which amended revenue recognition guidance to clarify the principles
for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers. The guidance requires an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance also
requires expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.
Additionally, qualitative and quantitative disclosures are required about customer contracts, significant judgments and changes in judgments, and assets
recognized from the costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. In April 2015, the FASB delayed the effective date of this standard by one year, and this accounting
guidance is now effective for the Company beginning in the year ending January 31, 2020 using one of two prescribed retrospective methods. Early adoption
is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of the amended revenue recognition guidance to its consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company assesses the fair value of financial instruments based on the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820-10, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, which establishes a hierarchy that is based on three levels of inputs and requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value:
*  Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
* Level 2: Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active market, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable and market-corroborated inputs which are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data; and

*  Level 3: Inputs are derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or value drivers are unobservable.

The following tables represent the fair value hierarchy for the financial assets and liabilities held by the Company measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(in thousands):

As of January 31, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market funds $ 25,266 $ — 3 — $ 25,266
Total financial assets $ 25,266 $ — 3 — $ 25,266

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
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January 31, 2017

Computers $ 169
Furniture and fixtures 35
Leasehold improvements 10
214
Less: accumulated depreciation (79)
Property and equipment, net $ 135

Depreciation expense amounted to $50,000 for the year ended January 31, 2017. The Company had no recognized gains or losses on disposal of long-lived
assets during the year ended January 31, 2017.

5. Acquisition and Goodwill

On March 31, 2016, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding equity of Psiog Data Science Private Limited (Psiog). The Company accounted
for the acquisition of Psiog as the purchase of a business. The total purchase consideration of $150,000 was paid in cash.

The primary purpose of the acquisition was to acquire Psiog’s assembled workforce who had worked on Company-specific projects. The Company did not
purchase any in-process research and development in connection with the acquisition.

The allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was based on their fair values as follows (in thousands):

January 31, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6
Prepaids and other current assets 6
Property and equipment 6
Net deferred tax assets 2
Deposits and other assets 21
Liabilities assumed (39)
Total identifiable net assets 2
Goodwill 148
Purchase consideration $ 150
6. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

January 31, 2017

Accrued compensation and benefits $ 591
Accrued sales taxes payable 394
Accrued cloud hosting and data costs 256
Accrued referral fees 281
Accrued other liabilities 365
Deferred rent and advances 54
Total $ 1,941

7. Stockholders’ Notes Receivable
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In August 2016, the Company granted loans to two non-executive employee shareholders to purchase the Company’s stock, each for the amount of $30,000.
The recourse loans are repayable in February 2019, and interest on these loans is the mid-term applicable federal rate, compounded semi-annually, with a
deferral of the interest payment until the payment of the loan. During the year ended January 31, 2017, interest accrued for these loans was immaterial. The
loans aggregating to $60,000 are recorded as amounts receivable within the statement of stockholders’ equity.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

In October 2014, the Company entered into a lease for its headquarters in San Mateo, California for an initial term expiring in May 2016. In July and August
2015, the Company added additional premises and extended the lease term to expire in November 2017. In September 2016, the Company entered into a
month-to-month sub-lease agreement for its office in New York. In October 2016, the Company entered into a lease for its office in Chennai, India that

expires in October 2021. The Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Future minimum lease payments under these non-cancelable operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending January 31,

2018 $ 387
2019 58
2020 60
2021 67
2022 50

$ 622

Rent expense amounted to $401,000 for the year ended January 31, 2017.

The Company, in the normal course of business, utilizes licenses for technology used in the Company’s business. Fees are based on usage of the underlying
technology. Payments under these arrangements are not considered to be significant.

Indemnifications

Under its bylaws, the Company has agreed to indemnify its officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted by its bylaws and the General Corporation
Law of the State of Delaware for certain events or occurrences arising as a result of the officer or director’s serving in such capacity. The coverage applies
only to acts, which occurred during the tenure of the officer or director and has an unlimited term. The maximum potential amount of future payments the
Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited. The Company believes the estimated fair value of these
indemnification agreements is minimal and no liability has been recorded for these agreements as of January 31, 2017.

The Company enters into indemnification provisions under (i) its agreements with other companies in its ordinary course of business, typically with business
partners, contractors, customers, and landlords and (ii) its agreements with investors. Under these provisions the Company generally indemnifies and holds
harmless the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party as a result of the Company's activities or, in some cases, as a result of
the indemnified party's activities under the agreement. These indemnification provisions often include indemnifications relating to representations made by
the Company with regard to intellectual property rights. These indemnification provisions generally survive termination of the underlying agreement. The
maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification provisions is unlimited. The Company
has not incurred material costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification agreements. As a result, the Company believes the
estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal. Accordingly, no liability has been recorded for these agreements as of January 31, 2017.
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9. Convertible Debt

In April 2015, the Company raised $5 million of convertible debt from a customer. The notes bore interest at a rate of 3% per annum, based on a 365-day year
and payable on maturity in April 2018. Prior to maturity, upon occurrence of a qualified financing, the outstanding principal amount of the debt and all
accrued and unpaid interest will automatically convert into fully paid and non-assessable shares of convertible preferred stock issued in such qualified
financing at a specified conversion price. A qualified financing was defined as an equity financing event for the issuance of convertible preferred stock for
aggregate proceeds of at least $10 million for the principal purpose of raising capital. As amended in December 2015, the conversion price was set at 80% of
the lowest price per share by any of the other purchasers of preferred stock sold in a qualified financing. The debt was recorded at fair value as it was
convertible into a variable number of shares, therefore in fiscal year 2016, a total amount of debt premium of $1.3 million was expensed. The maximum
number of convertible preferred stock that could be purchased by the customer through an automatic conversion was limited to 20% of the total number of
shares of convertible preferred stock issued in such qualified financing.

The transaction costs related to the debt issuance were immaterial.

In February 2016, in connection with the issuance of Convertible Series B Preferred Stock (“Series B”), the Company entered into a preferred stock purchase
agreement with the Series B investors who committed to buy a total of 10,219,560 Series B preferred stock at $2.505 per share for total proceeds of $26.6
million. Pursuant to the qualified financing, the outstanding principal, debt premium and accrued interest on the debt totaling $6.4 million converted into
2,560,016 Series B preferred stock. The conversion price is $2.004, which is equivalent to 80% of the fair market value of the Series B preferred stock.

10.  Preferred Stock
Based on the amended articles of incorporation dated February 5, 2016, the Company is authorized to issue 30,638,717 shares of preferred stock. The

preferred stock authorized may be issued from time to time in one or more series. At January 31, 2017, the designated series of preferred stock are as follows
(in thousands, except share data):

Shares Issued and Proceeds, Net of Liquidation
Series Shares Authorized Outstanding Issuance Costs Preference
A 16,666,663 16,666,663  $ 5709 $ 5,800
B 13,972,054 12,779,576 30,427 32,013
Total 30,638,717 29,446,239 $ 36,136  $ 37,813

The rights, preferences, and privileges of the holders of the Convertible Series A Preferred Stock (“Series A”) and the Convertible Series B Preferred Stock
are as follows:

Voting

Each holder of preferred stock shall be entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which the shares of preferred stock
held by such holder would convert. The holders of Series A, voting as a separate class, are entitled to elect one member of the Company’s Board of Directors.
The holders of Series B, voting as a separate class, are entitled to elect one member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Dividends

The holders of outstanding shares of preferred stock shall be entitled to receive, on pro-rata and pari passu basis, non-cumulative dividends, when and if
declared by the Board of Directors at the dividend rate specified for each series of preferred stock. No dividends shall be paid on the common stock unless
dividends on the preferred stock have been declared and paid or set aside for payment to the preferred stock holders. The dividend rate is an annual rate of
$0.028 per share for Series A preferred stock and $0.200 for Series B preferred stock. No dividends have been declared as of January 31, 2017.
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Liquidation Preference

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of the preferred stock shall be entitled
to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets of the Company to the holders of the common stock by reason of their ownership of
such stock, (i) an amount per share for each share of preferred stock held by them equal to the sum of (x) the liquidation preference specified for such share of
preferred stock and (y) all declared but unpaid dividends (if any) on such share of preferred stock, or such lesser amount as may be approved by the holders of
the majority of the holders of the outstanding shares of preferred stock (voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis); or (ii) such amount per
share as would have been payable to the holders of the preferred stock had such holder converted such shares into common stock before closing. If upon the
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the assets of the Company legally available for distribution to the holders of the preferred stock are
insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full amounts of the liquidation preferences as specified herein, then the entire assets of the Company
legally available for distribution shall be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among the holders of the preferred stock in proportion to the full amounts
they would otherwise be entitled to receive pursuant to the liquidation preferences as specified herein.

Conversion

Each share of preferred stock is convertible, at the option of the holder, into that number of fully paid shares of common stock determined by dividing the
original issue price for the relevant series by the conversion price for such series. The conversion prices are $0.348 for Series A preferred stock, and $2.505
for Series B preferred stock.

Each share will automatically convert into fully paid shares of common stock at the then effective conversion rate for each share (i) immediately prior to the
closing of a firm commitment underwritten initial public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, at a value in excess of $50.0 million, or (ii) upon the receipt by the Company of a written request of such conversion of at least a majority of the
preferred stock then outstanding (voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis), or, if later, the effective date for conversion specified in such
request.

11. Common Stock

The Company has authorized 50,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001. Shares were issued to option holders who exercised their rights under the
Company’s 2014 Equity Incentive Plan during the year ended January 31, 2017 to acquire 1,922,000 shares of common stock.

Each holder of shares of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share thereof held. The holders of common stock, voting as a separate class, are
entitled to elect two members of the Company’s Board of Directors. Any additional members of the Company’s Board of Directors shall be elected by the
holders of common stock and preferred stock, voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis.

12.  Stock Option Plan

In 2014, the Company adopted the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2014 Plan"). In September 2016, the Board of Directors approved certain amendments to
the 2014 Plan. Options granted under the 2014 Plan may be either incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock or restricted stock units. Incentive stock options ("ISOs") may be granted only to employees. Non-statutory stock options ("NSOs"), stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units may be granted to employees and service providers. Options under the 2014 Plan may be granted for periods
of up to ten years. The exercise price of ISOs, NSOs, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units shall not be less than 100% of the
estimated fair value of the common shares on the date of grant, respectively, as determined by the Board of Directors. The per share exercise price of an ISO
granted to a stockholder representing more than ten percent of the voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, shall not be less than 110% of the
estimated fair value of the common shares on the date of grant. Options generally vest over a period of four years or shorter term as provided in the award
agreement.

The Company allows for the early exercise of options granted under the 2014 Plan prior to vesting. The unvested shares are subject to the Company’s
repurchase right at the original purchase price. The proceeds initially are recorded as an accrued liability from
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the early exercise of stock options (see Note 6, Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities), and reclassified to common stock as the Company’s
repurchase right lapses. At January 31, 2017, there were unvested shares in the amount of 1,279,856, which were subject to repurchase at an aggregate price
of approximately $152,000.

A summary of the Company’s option activity is as follows:

Weighted Average
Weighted Average Grant Date Fair
Number of Shares Exercise Price Value
Stock Options
Outstanding at February 1, 2016 1,372,500 $ 0.06 $ 0.03
Granted 1,922,000 0.77 0.34
Exercised (195,000) 0.52 0.22
Cancelled/Forfeited (130,313) 0.34 0.14
Outstanding at January 31, 2017 2,969,187 $ 048 $ 0.21
The following table summarizes information about currently outstanding and vested stock options at January 31, 2017:
Option Outstanding Options Vested
Exercise Number of Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted Average
Price Options Contractual Life (Years) Number of Options Exercise Price
$ 0.06 1,292,187 8.4 399,704 $ 0.06
0.80 1,677,000 9.6 20,935 0.80
$ 0.48 2,969,187 9.1 420,639 $ 0.10

At January 31, 2017, the Company had 496,050 remaining shares available for grant under the 2014 Plan.

At January 31, 2017, the aggregate intrinsic value of currently exercisable options was $956,000 and the weighted-average remaining contractual term of
those options was 8.7 years. The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated as the difference between the exercise prices of the underlying stock option awards
and the fair value of common stock at January 31, 2017 of $0.80 per share.

The intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the year ended January 31, 2017 was nil.

The estimated grant date fair values of stock options were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, based on the following assumptions:

Year ended January 31, 2017

Expected term 6.08 - 10.00 years
Market price $0.8
Grant price $0.06 - 0.8
Volatility 37.2% - 42.8%
Risk free interest rate 1.3% - 2.6%
Dividends 0

The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury rates in effect during the corresponding period of grant. The expected term of the options granted to
employees was estimated by taking the average of the vesting and the contractual terms of the options. The expected term of the options granted to non-
employees is the remaining contractual life. The Company estimated its future
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stock price volatility based upon the volatility of comparable public companies having securities with observable trading histories. As a private company, with
no trading activity of the Company's options or stock, management feels this is the best estimate of expected volatility. The Company has never declared or
paid cash dividends and does not plan to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future; therefore, the Company used an expected dividend yield of zero. The
Company estimated the forfeiture rate based on an analysis of our actual forfeitures.

Total stock-based compensation expense was $133,000 for the year ended January 31, 2017. As of January 31, 2017, the aggregate stock compensation
remaining to be amortized was $566,000. The Company expects this stock compensation balance to be recognized over a weighted average of 3.3 years. The
Company expects to continue to issue share-based awards to its employees in future periods.

The fair values of stock options granted are recognized as compensation expense in the statement of operations over the related vesting periods. The

following table reflects the distribution of shared based compensation on the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss for the year ended
January 31, 2017 (in thousands):

For the Year Ended January 31, 2017

Research and development $ 57
Sales and marketing 46
General and administrative 30

$ 133

13.  Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes due for the current period, plus changes
in deferred taxes. Deferred taxes relate primarily to differences between the basis of property and equipment for financial and income tax reporting purposes
and net operating loss carry forwards. Deferred taxes represent the estimated consequences of those differences on the Company's tax filings, which will
either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.

The components of income (loss) before income taxes for the year ended January 31, 2017 were as follows (in thousands):

January 31, 2017

United States $ (9,323)
Foreign 113
Loss before income taxes $ (9,210)

The components of the provision for income taxes were as follows (in thousands):
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January 31, 2017

Current:
Federal $ —
State 5
Foreign 30
35
Deferred:
Federal —
State —
Foreign —
Total provision for income taxes $ 35
As of January 31, 2017, the Company's deferred tax assets (liabilities) consisted of the following (in thousands):
January 31, 2017
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Net operating loss carry forwards $ 4,356
Research and development credit carry forwards 778
Accrued liabilities and other 216
Stock based compensation 16
Property and equipment ®)
Gross deferred tax assets 5,358
Less: valuation allowance (5,358)
Net deferred tax assets $ —
The provision for income taxes differs from the amount of income taxes determined by applying the U.S. statutory federal income tax rate as follows:
January 31, 2017
Federal tax provision at statutory rate $ (3,132)
State, net of federal benefit 3
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 46
Change in valuation allowance 2,992
Debt conversion expense 436
Tax credits (310)
Provision for income taxes $ 35

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of deferred assets will be
realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. Based on the available objective evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that all of its net deferred
tax assets may not be realized in the future. Accordingly, a valuation allowance of $5.4 million is provided against the deferred tax assets of the Company for
January 31, 2017. The valuation allowance increased by $3.4 million during the year ended January 31, 2017.

As of January 31, 2017, the Company has U.S. federal and state net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $12.0 million and $5.4 million,
respectively, which begin to expire in 2034.
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As of January 31, 2017, the Company has U.S. federal and state research and development tax credits available to offset future taxes of $596,000 and
$669,000, respectively, which begin to expire in 2034 for federal purposes and do not expire for state purposes.

Utilization of the federal and state net operating loss and federal and state research and development tax credit carry forwards may be subject to annual
limitations due to the ownership percentage change provisions of the Internal Revenue Code Section 382 and similar state provisions. The annual limitations
may result in the inability to fully offset future annual taxable income and could result in the expiration of the net operating loss carry forwards before
utilization. Utilization of foreign net operating loss carry forwards may be limited or disallowed under similar foreign income tax provisions.

We have not recorded deferred income taxes applicable to undistributed earnings of a foreign subsidiary that are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations.
Generally, such earnings become subject to U.S. tax upon the remittance of dividends and under certain other circumstances. The Company asserts ability and
intent to postpone remittance of all or part of net investment in the UK & India (including earnings) indefinitely (i.e., essentially permanently reinvest).

The Company has adopted the provisions of ASC 740-10, Accounting for Income Tax Uncertainty, since inception. ASC 740-10 requires companies to
determine whether it is “more likely than not” that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority before any tax benefit
can be recorded in the financial statements. It also provides guidance on the recognition, classification, and interest and penalties related to uncertain tax
positions.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of January 31, 2017 was $259,000 and relates to research and development credits. The Company’s policy is
to recognize potential accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. As of January 31, 2017, no amounts of

interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions were recognized in the provision for income taxes.

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S. and various states and foreign jurisdictions. There are no other ongoing examinations by taxing authorities at
this time. The Company’s various tax years starting 2014 to 2016 remain open in various taxing jurisdictions.

14.  Related Party Transactions

In April 2015, the Company entered into a convertible debt agreement with a customer for $5.0 million. The convertible debt bore interest of 3% per annum
and had a maturity date in April 2018. As noted in Note 9, the convertible debt was converted into Series B preferred stock of the Company in February 2016.

15.  Subsequent Events

In February 2017, the Company granted recourse loans to two executive employee shareholders to purchase the Company’s stock, each for the amount of
$30,000.

In March 2017, the Board of Directors approved an increase to the number of shares of the Company’s common stock reserved for issuance under the 2014
Plan by 1,000,000 shares to a new total of 7,175,465 shares.

In March 2017, the Company extended the lease term for its headquarters in San Mateo, California to expire in November 2019.

In May 2017, the Company changed Psiog’s name to Cyence India Private Limited.

In August 2017, the Company entered into a lease for an office in London, United Kingdom that expires in September 2018.

In August 2017, the Board of Directors signed a letter of intent contemplating an acquisition of the Company by Guidewire Software, Inc.

On October 5, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization between Cyence and Guidewire Software, Inc.
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In connection with the issuance of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended January 31, 2017, the Company has evaluated subsequent events
through October 5, 2017, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued.
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Cyence, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except par value and shares data)

(unaudited)

July 31, 2017 January 31, 2017
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,824 $ 25,345
Accounts receivable, net 3,141 2,331
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,002 976
Total current assets 22,967 28,652
Property and equipment, net 134 135
Deposits and other non-current assets 323 359
Goodwill 148 148
Total assets $ 23,572 $ 29,294

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 422 °$ 510
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 2,117 1,941
Deferred revenue, current 3,279 3,217
Total current liabilities 5,818 5,668
Other long-term liabilities 15 —
Total liabilities 5,833 5,668

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders' equity
Series A convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 16,666,663 shares authorized; 16,666,663 shares issued

and outstanding (liquidation preference: $5,800) 5,709 5,709

Series B convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 13,972,054 shares authorized; 12,779,576 shares issued

and outstanding (liquidation preference: $32,013) 31,807 31,807

Common Stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 authorized; and 13,862,607 and 13,516,629 shares issued and

outstanding at July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017, respectively 12 12

Additional paid in capital 500 254

Stockholders' notes receivable (120) (60)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 2) ()

Accumulated deficit (20,167) (14,094)
Total stockholders' equity 17,739 23,626
Total liabilities and stockholder equity $ 23,572 $ 29,294

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Other income (expenses):
Interest and other income, net

Loss before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss:

Cyence, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Total other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Six Months Ended July 31,

2017 2016
4,593 $ 2,270
923 469
3,670 1,801
5,880 3,964
2,674 1,336
1,182 712
9,736 6,012
(6,066) (4,211)
2 (13)
(6,064) (4,224)
9 2
(6,073) $ (4,226)
= (1)

— (1)
(6,073) $ (4,227)




Cyence, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
(in thousands, except shares data)

(unaudited)
Accumulated
Series A Series B Common Stock Shareholder ~ Additional Other Total
Notes Paid-in  Comprehensive Accumulated  Stockholders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Receivable Capital Loss Deficit Equity
Balances, January 31, 2017 16,666,663 $ 5,709 12,779,576  $ 31,807 13,516,629 $ 12 $ (60) $ 254 $ 2 $ (14,094 $ 23,626
Issuance of common stock upon exercise
of stock options — — — — 6,250 — — 5 — — 5
Vesting of early exercised stock options — — — — 339,728 — — 84 — — 84
Issuance of shareholder notes receivable — — — — — — (60) — — — (60)
Stock-based compensation — — — — — — — 157 — — 157
Foreign currency translation — — — — — — — — — — —
Net loss — — — — — — — — — (6,073) (6,073)
Balances, July 31, 2017 16,666,663 $ 5,709 12,779,576  $ 31,807 13,862,607 $ 12 $ (1200 $ 500 $ 2 $ (20,167) $ 17,739

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



Cyence, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Six Months Ended July 31,

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Stock-based compensation

Accrued interest on debt converted to equity

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of businesses acquired:
Accounts receivable
Other current assets and long-term assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchases of property and equipment, net
Payment of acquisition of Psiog, net of cash acquired

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from early exercises of common stock options
Proceeds from exercises of common stock options
Proceeds from Series B, net of issuance costs
Payments to repurchase early exercised stock options

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Cash paid for income taxes

Vesting of early exercised stock options

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016

(6,073) $ (4,226)
38 22
157 45
— 130
(810) (853)
9 (405)
(88) 60
117 385
15 (4)

62 348
(6,573) (4,498)
(36) (54)
— (144)
(36) (198)
88 5

5 _

— 25,427
4) =

89 25,432
1) 1)
(6,521) 20,735
25,345 7,440
18,824 $ 28,175
10 $ —
84 $ 27



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited)

1. Organization and Description of Business
Organization

Cyence Inc. (with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “the Company”) was incorporated on August 20, 2014 in the state of Delaware under the name of
CyberSkore Inc. and was renamed Cyence Inc. on September 18, 2014. The Company is a cloud-based provider of economic cyber risk modeling services
that quantifies cyber risk in probabilities and dollars. The Company brings together data science, cybersecurity, and economics to build a unique analytics
platform that quantifies the financial impact of cyber risk. The Company’s services are used by leaders across the insurance industry to prospect and select
risks, assess and price risks, manage risk portfolios and accumulations, and bring new insurance products to market. The Company’s customers include
insurance brokers, rating agencies, regulators, insurers, and reinsurers.

The Company is headquartered in San Mateo, California with operations in New York, New York; Chennai, India; and London, United Kingdom.

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic industry, and accordingly, can be affected by a variety of factors. Management of the Company believes that changes in
any of the following areas could have a significant negative effect on the Company in terms of its future financial position, results of operations or cash flows:
ability to obtain additional financing; advances and trends in new technologies and industry standards; changes in certain strategic relationships or customer
relationships; market acceptance of the Company's products; continued development of sales channels; litigation or other claims against the Company; the
hiring, training and retention of key employees; and new product introductions by competitors.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cyence Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, SM Insurance Solutions LLC (incorporated in
the State of Delaware, U.S.), Cyence India Private Limited (incorporated in India), and Cyence Ltd (incorporated in the U.K.). The Company has eliminated
all intercompany accounts and transactions.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America (GAAP) and applicable rules. Certain information and note disclosures normally included in the financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes included in the audited annual financial statements at January 31, 2017.
The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of January 31, 2017 included in these financial statements has been derived from the audited financial
statements. There have been no changes in the significant accounting policies from those that were disclosed in the audited consolidated financial statements
for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2017.

In the opinion of management, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements include all the normal recurring adjustments necessary to
present fairly the condensed consolidated financial statements. The results of operations for the six months ended July 31, 2017 and 2016 were not necessarily
indicative of the operating results for the full fiscal year or any future periods.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and the related disclosures regarding these items. Significant items subject to such
estimates and assumptions include, but are not limited to: the best estimate of selling price of the deliverables included in multiple-deliverable revenue
arrangements; the collectability of accounts receivable; the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed for business combinations; the realizability of
deferred tax assets; the fair value of stock-based awards and related forfeiture rates; and the capitalization and estimated useful life of software development
costs.



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited)

Concentrations

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company deposits its cash and cash equivalents with major financial institutions that management believes are of high credit quality;
however, at times, balances exceed federally insured limits.

As of July 31, 2017, three customers represented 26%, 20%, and 10%, respectively, of total gross accounts receivable. As of January 31, 2017, three
customers represented 32%, 28%, and 18%, respectively, of total gross accounts receivable.

For the six months ended July 31, 2017, one customer represented 12% of total revenue. For the six months ended July 31, 2016, four customers represented
24%, 12%, 12% and 11%, respectively, of total revenue.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. As
of July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market accounts with banks of $18.8 million and $25.3 million,
respectively. The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term
nature of the maturities.

Accounts Receivable, Unbilled Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under specific customer agreements and/or contracts. Payment terms vary with each
customer, but the majority of contracts provide for payment within 30 - 90 days of invoice date with no discounts offered.

Unbilled accounts receivable represents revenue recognized but amounts not yet invoiced due to contract terms, timing of customers’ self-reporting of
variable consideration, or timing of the invoicing cycle. As of July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017, unbilled accounts receivable is included in Accounts
receivable, net and was $1.2 million and $1.3 million, respectively.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is determined based on specific identification of balances, the collection of which, in management’s opinion, is doubtful.
After all attempts to collect a receivable have failed, the receivable is written off against the allowance. As of July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017, the
Company recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts of nil and $17,000, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in connection with business combinations accounted for using
the purchase method of accounting.

Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment at least annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. The Company has one reporting unit and evaluates goodwill for impairment at the consolidated entity level. The Company completed the
annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended January 31, 2017, which did not result in any impairment of the goodwill balance. There
were no events or changes in circumstances during the six months ended July 31, 2017 that indicated a need for an interim goodwill impairment test. The
Company did not recognize any impairment loss during the six months ended July 31, 2017 and 2016. The carrying amount of goodwill as of July 31, 2017
and January 31, 2017 was $148,000.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from two sources:



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited)

1. Subscription services - Subscription revenue consists of subscription fees from customers for access to the Company’s cloud-based platform and
variable consideration from customers calculated as a percentage of gross premiums written by customers during the subscription term. The
contractual term is generally one to three years.

2. Consulting services - Consulting services consist of fees associated with risk assessments and written report documentation as agreed upon in the
corresponding service agreement. The Company’s consulting services contracts are offered at a fixed fee or on a time and materials basis, and are
generally delivered within one year of the date of the arrangement. Revenue derived from consulting services was immaterial for the six months
ended July 31, 2017 and 2016.

Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are met:

»  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

»  The service has been or is being provide to the customer;
*  Fees are fixed or determinable; and

*  Collectability is reasonably assured.

Multiple Deliverable Arrangements

Revenue from customers is generated under sales agreements with multiple deliverables, comprised of subscription services and associated support services,
such as free best-use training and as-needed access to a solution architect. For these multiple deliverable arrangements, the Company evaluates whether the
individual deliverables qualify as separate units of accounting. In order to treat deliverables in a multiple-deliverable arrangement as separate units of
accounting, the deliverables must have standalone value upon delivery. The Company has determined that the support services do not have standalone value
independent of the subscription services. In determining the best estimated selling price of the subscription offerings, the Company analyzes market
conditions and its overall pricing practices. The Company has determined that the best estimate of the selling price of its subscription services approximates
the actual selling prices of the offerings. Revenue is recognized based on consideration of the subscription services, which represents the predominant
deliverable in the arrangement.

Fees for the subscription and associated services within multiple deliverable arrangements are non-contingent and are recognized over the contractual term of
the arrangement beginning on the date that the service is made available to the customer. Our subscription arrangements are considered service contracts, and
the customer does not have the right to take possession of the software.

In addition to fixed subscription fees, subscription contracts may also include variable consideration ranging from 1% to 4% of gross premiums written by
customers during the subscription term. The customer is obligated to provide information related to gross written premiums to the Company annually at the
end of each subscription year, when the variable consideration is generally due and payable. The Company does not recognize variable revenue until the end
of each annual subscription term, when the variable fees are fixed and determinable.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of subscription revenue primarily consists of direct expenses related to hosting the Company's service and providing support to the Company's
customers. These expenses are comprised of third-party web hosting costs, data and software license subscription costs, and personnel-related expenses
associated with hosting our subscription services and providing support consisting of allocated salaries, benefits, and travel costs.

Cost of consulting services consists primarily of the cost of third-party subcontractors or personnel-related costs associated with providing these services,
including salaries and benefits. These costs are generally expensed as incurred.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of billings or payments received in advance of revenue recognition and are recognized as the revenue recognition criteria are met.
The Company generally invoices its customers annually or in quarterly installments payable in advance. Accordingly, the deferred revenue balance does not
represent the total contract value of annual or multi-year, noncancelable arrangements. The current portion of deferred revenue represents the amount that is
expected to be recognized as revenue within



Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited)

one year from the balance sheet date. The Company did not have any long-term deferred revenue as of July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017.
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all stock options based on the estimate of fair value of the award at the grant date. The fair value of each
option award is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. As required by the model, at the date of grant, the Company
determines the fair value of the underlying common stock, the expected term of the award, the expected volatility of the price of comparable public
companies, risk-free interest rates, and expected dividend yield. At the time of grant, the Company also estimates forfeitures based on an analysis of actual
historical forfeitures, and revises, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The compensation expense, net of
estimated forfeitures, is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using an asset and liability approach. Under this method, the tax provision includes taxes currently due plus the net
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from the temporary differences between the tax basis of an asset or
liability and its reported amount in the financial statements, as well as from net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax amounts are
determined by using the tax rates expected to be in effect when the taxes will actually be paid or refund received, as provided for under currently enacted tax
law. A valuation allowance is provided for the amount of deferred tax assets that, based on available evidence, is not expected to be realized.

For financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. The impact of an uncertain income tax position on the income
tax return is recognized at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax
position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained.

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company assesses the fair value of financial instruments based on the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820-10, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, which establishes a hierarchy that is based on three levels of inputs and requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value:

« Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2: Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active market, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable and market-corroborated inputs which are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data; and

+  Level 3: Inputs are derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or value drivers are unobservable.

The following tables represent the fair value hierarchy for the financial assets and liabilities held by the Company measured at fair value on a recurring basis
at July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017 (in thousands):

As of July 31, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market funds $ 18,618 $ — $ — $ 18,618
Total financial assets $ 18,618 $ — $ — $ 18,618




Cyence, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)
As of January 31, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market funds $ 25,266 $ — $ — 9 25,266
Total financial assets $ 25,266 $ — $ — $ 25,266
4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
January 31,
July 31, 2017 2017
Computers $ 196 $ 169
Furniture and fixtures 45 35
Leasehold improvements 10 10
251 214

Less: accumulated depreciation (117) (79)
Property and equipment, net $ 134 $ 135

Depreciation and amortization expense for the six months ended July 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $38,000 and $22,000, respectively. The Company had
no recognized gains or losses on disposal of long-lived assets during the six months ended July 31, 2017 and 2016.

5. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

January 31,
July 31, 2017 2017
Accrued compensation and benefits $ 839 $ 591
Accrued sales taxes payable 361 394
Accrued cloud hosting and data costs 318 256
Accrued referral fees 247 281
Accrued other liabilities 352 419
Total $ 2,117 ' $ 1,941

6. Stockholders’ Notes Receivable

In August 2016, the Company granted loans to two non-executive employee shareholders to purchase the Company’s stock, each for the amount of $30,000.
The recourse loans are repayable in February 2019, and interest on these loans is the mid-term applicable federal rate, compounded semi-annually, with a
deferral of the interest payment until the payment of the loan.

In February 2017, the Company granted loans to two executive employee shareholders to purchase the Company’s stock, each for the amount of $30,000. The
recourse loans are repayable in May and August 2021, respectively, and interest on these loans is the mid-term applicable federal rate, compounded semi-
annually, with a deferral of the interest payment until the payment of the loan.
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(unaudited)

During the six months ended July 31, 2017 and 2016, interest accrued for these loans was immaterial. The loans aggregating to $120,000 and $60,000 are
recorded as amounts receivable within the statement of stockholders’ equity as of July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017, respectively.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

In October 2014, the Company entered into a lease for its headquarters in San Mateo, California for an initial term expiring in May 2016. In July and August
2015, the Company added additional premises and extended the lease term to expire in November 2017. In March 2017, the Company extended the lease term
for 24 months to November 31, 2019. In September 2016, the Company entered into a month-to-month sub-lease agreement for its office in New York. In
October 2016, the Company entered into a lease for its office in Chennai, India that expires in October 2021. The Company recognizes rent expense on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Future minimum lease payments under these non-cancelable operating leases are as follows as of July 31, 2017 (in thousands):

2018 (remaining six months) $ 228
2,019 466
2,020 409
2,021 67
2,022 50

$ 1,220

Rent expense amounted to $244,000 and $194,000 for the six months ended July 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is potentially involved in litigation incidental to its business, certain of which include speculative claims for
substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages. The Company records a liability when it believes that a loss is both probable and reasonably estimable. The
Company reviews each of its legal proceedings to determine whether it is probable, reasonably possible or remote that a liability has been incurred and, if it is
at least reasonably possible, whether a range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment is required to determine both the likelihood of there
being a loss and the estimated amount of a loss. The Company’s management is not aware of any pending legal proceeding or other loss contingency, whether
asserted or unasserted, affecting the Company for which it might become liable or the outcome of which management expects to have a material impact on
the Company. However, the outcome of legal matters is inherently unpredictable and subject to significant uncertainties.

8. Preferred Stock

Based on the amended articles of incorporation dated February 5, 2016, the Company is authorized to issue 30,638,717 shares of preferred stock. The
preferred stock authorized may be issued from time to time in one or more series. At both July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017, the designated series of
preferred stock are as follows (in thousands, except share data):

Shares Issued and Proceeds, Net of Liquidation
Series Shares Authorized Outstanding Issuance Costs Preference
A 16,666,663 16,666,663 $ 5709 $ 5,800
B 13,972,054 12,779,576 30,427 32,013

Total 30,638,717 29,446,239 $ 36,136 $ 37,813
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The rights, preferences, and privileges of the holders of the Convertible Series A Preferred Stock (“Series A”) and the Convertible Series B Preferred Stock
(“Series B”) are as follows:

Voting

Each holder of preferred stock shall be entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which the shares of preferred stock
held by such holder would convert. The holders of Series A, voting as a separate class, are entitled to elect one member of the Company’s Board of Directors.
The holders of Series B, voting as a separate class, are entitled to elect one member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Dividends

The holders of outstanding shares of preferred stock shall be entitled to receive, on pro-rata and pari passu basis, non-cumulative dividends, when and if
declared by the Board of Directors at the dividend rate specified for each series of preferred stock. No dividends shall be paid on the common stock unless
dividends on the preferred stock have been declared and paid or set aside for payment to the preferred stock holders. The dividend rate is an annual rate of
$0.028 per share for Series A preferred stock and $0.200 for Series B preferred stock. No dividends have been declared as of July 31, 2017 and January 31,
2017.

Liquidation Preference

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of the preferred stock shall be entitled
to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets of the Company to the holders of the common stock by reason of their ownership of
such stock, (i) an amount per share for each share of preferred stock held by them equal to the sum of (x) the liquidation preference specified for such share of
preferred stock and (y) all declared but unpaid dividends (if any) on such share of preferred stock, or such lesser amount as may be approved by the holders of
the majority of the holders of the outstanding shares of preferred stock (voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis); or (ii) such amount per
share as would have been payable to the holders of the preferred stock had such holder converted such shares into common stock before closing. If upon the
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the assets of the Company legally available for distribution to the holders of the preferred stock are
insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full amounts of the liquidation preferences as specified herein, then the entire assets of the Company
legally available for distribution shall be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among the holders of the preferred stock in proportion to the full amounts
they would otherwise be entitled to receive pursuant to the liquidation preferences as specified herein.

Conversion

Each share of preferred stock is convertible, at the option of the holder, into that number of fully paid shares of common stock determined by dividing the
original issue price for the relevant series by the conversion price for such series. The conversion prices are $0.348 for Series A preferred stock, and $2.505
for Series B preferred stock.

Each share will automatically convert into fully paid shares of common stock at the then effective conversion rate for each share (i) immediately prior to the
closing of a firm commitment underwritten initial public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, at a value in excess of $50.0 million, or (ii) upon the receipt by the Company of a written request of such conversion of at least a majority of the
preferred stock then outstanding (voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis), or, if later, the effective date for conversion specified in such
request.

9. Common Stock

The Company has authorized 50,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001. Each holder of shares of common stock are entitled to one vote for each
share thereof held. The holders of common stock, voting as a separate class, are entitled to elect two members of the Company’s Board of Directors. Any
additional members of the Company’s Board of Directors shall be elected by the holders of common stock and preferred stock, voting together as a single
class on an as-converted basis.

10.  Stock Option Plan
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In 2014, the Company adopted the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2014 Plan"). In September 2016, the Board of Directors approved certain amendments to
the 2014 Plan. Options granted under the 2014 Plan may be either incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock or restricted stock units. Incentive stock options ("ISOs") may be granted only to employees. Non-statutory stock options ("NSOs"), stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units may be granted to employees and service providers. Options under the 2014 Plan may be granted for periods
of up to ten years. The exercise price of ISOs, NSOs, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units shall not be less than 100% of the
estimated fair value of the common shares on the date of grant, respectively, as determined by the Board of Directors. The per share exercise price of an ISO
granted to a stockholder representing more than ten percent of the voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, shall not be less than 110% of the
estimated fair value of the common shares on the date of grant. Options generally vest over a period of four years or shorter term as provided in the award
agreement.

The Company allows for the early exercise of options granted under the 2014 Plan prior to vesting. The unvested shares are subject to the Company’s
repurchase right at the original purchase price. The proceeds initially are recorded as an accrued liability from the early exercise of stock options (see Note 5,
Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities), and reclassified to common stock as the Company’s repurchase right lapses. The Company allows for the
early exercise of options granted under the 2014 Plan prior to vesting. At July 31, 2017 and January 31, 2017, there were unvested shares in the amount of
1,062,211 and 1,279,856, which were subject to repurchase at an aggregate price of approximately $213,000 and $152,000, respectively.

The following table summarizes stock option activity under the 2014 Plan for the six months ended July 31, 2017:

Weighted Average
Weighted Average Grant Date Fair
Number of Shares Exercise Price Value
Stock Options
Outstanding at January 31, 2017 2,969,187 $ 048 $ 0.21
Granted 1,270,500 0.79 0.35
Exercised (187,500) 0.82 0.31
Cancelled/Forfeited (229,687) 0.38 0.39
Outstanding at July 31, 2017 3,822,500 $ 057 $ 0.24
The following table summarizes information about currently outstanding and vested stock options at July 31, 2017:
Option Outstanding Options Vested
Exercise Number of Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted Average
Price Options Contractual Life (Years) Number of Options Exercise Price

$ 0.06 1,237,500 8.0 572,912 § 0.06

0.80 1,499,500 9.1 171,566 0.80

0.84 1,085,500 9.8 1,666 0.84

$ 0.57 3,822,500 9.0 746,144 $ 0.23

At July 31, 2017, the Company had 514,404 remaining shares available for grant under the 2014 Plan.
At July 31, 2017, the aggregate intrinsic value of currently exercisable options was $950,000 and the weighted-average remaining contractual term of those
options was 8.2 years. The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated as the difference between the exercise prices of the underlying stock option awards and

the fair value of common stock at July 31, 2017 of $0.84 per share.

The intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the six months ended July 31, 2017 was nil.
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The estimated grant date fair values of stock options were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, based on the following assumptions:

Six Months Ended July 31, 2017

Expected term 5.47 - 10.00 years
Market price $0.84
Grant price $0.06 - 0.84
Volatility 36.4% - 42.4%
Risk free interest rate 1.9% - 2.3%
Dividends —

The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury rates in effect during the corresponding period of grant. The expected term of the options granted to
employees was estimated by taking the average of the vesting and the contractual terms of the options. The expected term of the options granted to non-
employees is the remaining contractual life. The Company estimated its future stock price volatility based upon the volatility of comparable public companies
having securities with observable trading histories. As a private company, with no trading activity of the Company's options or stock, management feels this is
the best estimate of expected volatility. The Company has never declared or paid cash dividends and does not plan to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable
future; therefore, the Company used an expected dividend yield of zero. The Company estimated the forfeiture rate based on an analysis of our actual
forfeitures.

Unrecognized stock-based compensation expense relating to stock options was $795,000 at July 31, 2017, which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 3.1 years.

The fair values of stock options granted are recognized as compensation expense in the statement of operations over the related vesting periods. The

following table presents stock-based compensation expense included in the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
loss (in thousands):

For the Six Months

Ended July 31,
2016 2017
Research and development $ 51 $ 22
Sales and marketing 69 15
General and administrative 37 8
$ 157 $ 45

11. Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes due for the current period, plus changes
in deferred taxes. Deferred taxes relate primarily to differences between the basis of property and equipment for financial and income tax reporting purposes
and net operating loss carry forwards. Deferred taxes represent the estimated consequences of those differences on the Company's tax filings, which will
either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.

The Company has had net operating losses since inception. The income tax provision for the six months ended July 31, 2017 and 2016 relates to the foreign
subsidiaries and state minimum taxes.

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of deferred assets will be
realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. Based on the available objective evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that all of its net deferred
tax assets may not be realized in the future.
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12.  Subsequent Events
In August 2017, the Company entered into a lease for an office in London, United Kingdom that expires in September 2018.
In August 2017, the Board of Directors signed a letter of intent contemplating an acquisition of the Company by Guidewire Software, Inc (Guidewire).

On October 5, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization (Merger Agreement) between Cyence and Guidewire. Total
consideration for the acquisition is approximately $275 million, or $265 million net of $10 million cash on hand, subject to customary transaction
adjustments. Consideration provided at closing will consist of net cash of approximately $140 million and approximately 1.6 million shares of newly issued
Guidewire common stock. Of those shares, approximately 260,000 are in the form of deferred equity consideration, which are subject to the achievement of
certain retention and operating milestones. The closing of the Merger Agreement is subject to customary closing conditions, including regulatory approvals.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through October 23, 2017, the date at which these condensed consolidated financial statements were available
to be issued and determined that there were no other items to adjust or disclose.



Exhibit 99.3

GUIDEWIRE SOFTWARE, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On November 1, 2017 (the “Acquisition Date”), pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization entered into on October 5, 2017, Guidewire Software,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Guidewire”, “the Company”, “we”, “our”, “us” and similar terms unless the context indicates
otherwise) completed its acquisition of Cyence, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Cyence”) (the “Acquisition”). The following unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information presents the historical condensed combined financial statements of Guidewire and Cyence after giving effect to Guidewire’s
acquisition of Cyence based on the assumptions, reclassifications and adjustments described in the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed

combined financial information.
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The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of July 31, 2017 is presented as if the Acquisition occurred on July 31, 2017. The unaudited
pro forma condensed combined statements of income for the year ended July 31, 2017 is presented as if the Acquisition occurred on August 1, 2016, the first
day of our 2017 fiscal year.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information was prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X. The unaudited pro forma
adjustments reflecting the Acquisition have been prepared in accordance with business combination accounting guidance as provided in Accounting
Standards Codification 805, Business Combinations, and reflect the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the acquired assets and assumed liabilities
based on a preliminary estimate of fair values, using available information and the assumptions set forth in the notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information. These preliminary values may change in future reporting periods upon finalization of the valuation, which will occur no later
than the first quarter of fiscal 2019.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information included herein was derived from our audited historical consolidated financial
statements. We have a fiscal year end of July 31 whereas Cyence has historically had a fiscal year end of January 31. In order to conform the Cyence
historical financial information to our fiscal year end, the Cyence historical financial information included herein is derived from the Cyence historical results
as of and for the twelve months ended July 31, 2017. Additionally, we have reclassified certain line items within the Cyence historical financial information to
conform to the presentation of our consolidated financial statements.

The historical condensed combined financial information has been adjusted to give effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the
Acquisition, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income, expected to have a
continuing impact on the combined results. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the
Company’s audited historical consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as of and for the year ended July 31,
2017 and the audited historical financial statements of Cyence as of and for the year ended January 31, 2017, and the unaudited historical condensed financial
statements of Cyence as of and for the six month period ended July 31, 2017, contained in this Form 8-K/A.

The unaudited pro forma adjustments are not necessarily indicative of or intended to represent the results that would have been achieved had the Acquisition
been consummated as of the dates indicated or that may be achieved in the future. The actual results reported by the combined company in periods following
the Acquisition may differ significantly from that are reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information for a number of reasons,
including the effects of applying final purchase accounting and the incremental costs incurred to integrate the two companies. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial information does not reflect any cost savings or associated costs to achieve such savings from operating efficiencies, synergies,
or other restructuring that may result from the Acquisition.



GUIDEWIRE SOFTWARE, INC.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF JULY 31, 2017
(in thousands)

Historical
Guidewire Cyence Pro Forma Pro Forma
(As reported) (As adjusted) Adjustments Combined
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 263,176  $ 18,824 $ (147,383) (a) $ 134,617
Short-term investments 310,027 — — 310,027
Accounts receivable 79,433 3,141 — 82,574
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 26,604 1,002 (482) (b)(c) 27,124
Total current assets 679,240 22,967 (147,865) 554,342
Long-term investments 114,585 — — 114,585
Property and equipment, net 14,376 134 (134) (d) 14,376
Intangible assets, net 71,315 — 51,900 (e) 123,215
Deferred tax assets, net 37,430 — (8,531) (f) 28,899
Goodwill 141,851 148 199,476 (g) 341,475
Other assets 20,104 323 (54) (h) 20,373
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,078,901 $ 23,572 $ 94,792 $ 1,197,265
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY I
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 13,416 $ 422 $ — $ 13,838
Accrued employee compensation 48,882 789 — 49,671
Deferred revenues, current 91,243 3,279 (944) (1) 93,578
Other current liabilities 10,075 1,328 459 (k) 11,862
Total current liabilities 163,616 5,818 (485) 168,949
Deferred revenues, noncurrent 19,892 — — 19,892
Other liabilities 2,112 15 — 2,127
Total liabilities 185,620 5,833 (485) 190,968
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Series A convertible preferred stock — 5,709 (5,709) () —
Series B convertible preferred stock — 31,807 (31,807) (1) —
Common stock 8 12 12) @ 8
Additional paid-in capital 830,014 500 117,765 (1)(m)(n) 948,279
Shareholders' notes receivable — (120) 120 (D) —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,796) 2) 2 (D (5,796)
Retained earnings 69,055 (20,167) 14,918 (1)(n)(0) 63,806
Total stockholders’ equity 893,281 17,739 95,277 1,006,297
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 1,078,901 $ 23,572  $ 94,792 $ 1,197,265

See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.
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GUIDEWIRE SOFTWARE, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2017
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Historical
Guidewire Cyence Pro Forma
(As reported) (As adjusted) Adjustment
Revenues:
License and other $ 271,462 $ 10,449 $ (631) (p)
Maintenance 68,643 — —
Services 174,179 — —
Total revenues 514,284 10,449 (631)
Cost of revenues:
License and other 17,046 1,557 5,700 (q)
Maintenance 13,397 — —
Services 161,116 — —
Total cost of revenues 191,559 1,557 5,700
Gross profit:
License and other 254,416 8,892 (6,331)
Maintenance 55,246 — —
Services 13,063 — —
Total gross profit 322,725 8,892 (6,331)
Operating expenses:
Research and development 130,323 11,282 9,827 (1)
Sales and marketing 109,239 4,944 9,568 (q)(r)
General and administrative 56,551 2,450 3,619 (1)
Total operating expenses 296,113 18,676 23,014
Income (loss) from operations 26,612 (9,784) (29,345)
Interest income, net 5,854 15 —
Other income, net 811 — —
Income (loss) before income taxes 33,277 (9,769) (29,345)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 12,053 41 (10,843) (s)
Net income (loss) $ 21,224  $ (9,810) $ (18,502)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic 0.29
Diluted 0.28
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share:
Basic 73,994,577
Diluted 75,328,343

See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.

Pro Forma
Combined

$ 281,280
68,643
174,179

524,102

24,303
13,397
161,116

198,816

256,977
55,246
13,063

325,286

151,432
123,751
62,620

337,803

(12,517)
5,869
811

(5,837)
1,251

$ (7,088)

$ (0.10)

®

$ (0.10)

®

74,043,319

®

74,043,319

®




GUIDEWIRE SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. BASIS OF PRO FORMA PRESENTATION

The historical financial information has been adjusted to give pro forma effect to events that are: (a) directly attributable to the Acquisition, (b) factually
supportable, and (c) with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined
results. The unaudited pro forma adjustments are preliminary and based on estimates of the fair value and useful lives of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, and have been prepared to illustrate the estimated effect of the Acquisition. The final determination of the purchase price allocation will be based on
the final valuation of the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Acquisition.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information included herein was derived from our historical consolidated financial statements. We
have a fiscal year end of July 31 whereas Cyence has historically had a fiscal year end of January 31. In order to conform the Cyence historical financial
information to our fiscal periods, the Cyence historical financial information included herein is derived from the Cyence historical results as of and for the
twelve months ended July 31, 2017. Additionally, we have reclassified certain line items within the Cyence historical financial information to conform to the
presentation of our consolidated financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been compiled using the significant accounting policies as set forth in our audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended July 31, 2017. Based on the procedures performed to date, we determined that the accounting policies of
Cyence are similar in material respects to those of ours. As more information becomes available, we will complete a more detailed review of the Cyence
accounting policies. As a result of that review, differences may be identified between the accounting policies of the two companies that, when conformed,
could have a material impact on the combined financial statements.

3. PRELIMINARY PURCHASE CONSIDERATION AND PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

The gross purchase price of the Acquisition was $275.0 million, subject to certain adjustments including a net working capital adjustment. These
adjustments reflected herein to determine the purchase consideration are preliminary and may change as the Company finalizes these adjustments during the
measurement period based on new information as it becomes available. The preliminary purchase consideration is $260.5 million as follows:

Preliminary Purchase
Consideration

(in thousands)

Cash consideration paid at close $ 142,612
Equity issued to preferred shareholders 102,493
Issuance of replacement awards 15,441
Total preliminary purchase consideration $ 260,546

The Acquisition was accounted for as a business combination. As part of the preliminary purchase price allocation, the Company determined that
Cyence’s separately identifiable intangible assets were developed technology, customer contracts and related relationships, order backlog, and trade names.
The Company utilized the discounted cash flow methodology and the profit allocation methodology under the income approach to estimate the fair values of
intangible assets. The Company used the cost build-up approach to estimate the fair value of deferred revenue by estimating the costs related to fulfilling the
obligation plus an additional markup for an assumed operating margin to reflect the profit a third party would expect to realize on the costs incurred. These
fair value measurements were based on significant inputs that were not observable in the market and thus represent a Level 3 measurement. The valuation
models were based on estimates of future operating projections of Cyence and rights to sell new products containing the acquired technology as well as
judgments about the discount rates used and other variables. The Company developed forecasts based on a number of factors including future revenue and
operating cost projections, a discount rate that is



representative of the weighted average cost of capital, in addition to royalty and long-term sustainable growth rates based on a market analysis. The Company
amortizes the acquired intangibles over their estimated used lives as set forth in the table below.

The allocation of purchase consideration is preliminary pending the final valuation of intangible and tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed and is
therefore subject to potential future measurement period adjustments. The preliminary allocation of the purchase consideration is as follows:

Preliminary Purchase Price

Allocation Estimated Useful Lives
(in thousands) (in years)

Acquired tangible assets, net of assumed liabilities $ 9,022
Developed technology 28,500 5
Customer contracts and related relationships 17,600 5
Order backlog 3,300 2
Trademarks 2,500 7
Goodwill 199,624

Total preliminary purchase consideration $ 260,546

The goodwill of $199.6 million arising from the Acquisition consists largely of the acquired workforce, the expected company-specific synergies and
the opportunity to expand the Company’s customer base. The goodwill recognized is not expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

4. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

The following is a description of the unaudited pro forma adjustments reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
statements:

Adjustments to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of July 31, 2017 (in thousands):

(a) To record the reduction in cash paid for the Acquisition of $142,612 and estimated transaction costs incurred and paid subsequent to the balance sheet date
of $4,771.

(b) To record the write off of $283 of short term deferred costs which hold no future benefit to Guidewire.
(c) To record the write off of $199 of prepaid expenses to conform accounting policies.
(d) To record the fair value adjustment of ($134) to Cyence depreciable property and equipment.

(e) To record the estimated fair value of acquired intangible assets as set forth below:

Developed technology $ 28,500
Customer contracts and related relationships 17,600
Order backlog 3,300
Trademark 2,500
Total acquired intangible assets $ 51,900

(f) To record a net deferred tax liability of $8,531 related to the fair value of acquired intangible assets and acquired net operating losses.

(g) To record the preliminary estimate of goodwill recognized as a result of the Acquisition, which represents the amount by which the estimated
consideration transferred exceeds the fair value of Cyence’s assets acquired and liabilities assumed set forth in Note 3.

(h) To record the write off of $54 of long-term deferred costs which hold no future benefit to Guidewire.

(i) To record the fair value adjustment to deferred revenue of ($944).



(j) To record a liability of $312 for Cyence transaction costs that were unpaid as of the Acquisition date.
(k) To record a liability of $147 related to liability classified awards issued for the Acquisition.
(1) To record the elimination of Cyence historical equity.

(m) To record equity issued for the Acquisition of $117,787 related to equity awards exchanged and new awards granted by Guidewire to retained Cyence
employees.

(n) To record the acceleration of stock-based compensation expense of $478.

(o) To record the payment of estimated transaction costs of $4,771.

Adjustments to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of income for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2017 (in thousands):

(p) To record a reduction in revenue of $631 related to the estimated fair value of the acquired deferred revenue.

(q) To record the estimated amortization expense related to the intangible assets acquired utilizing the estimated useful lives as set forth in Note 3:

Year ended July 31,
2017
Cost of license and other revenue $ 5,700
Sales and marketing 5,527
Total amortization adjustment $ 11,227

(r) To record the estimated adjustment to stock-based compensation expense related to equity awards exchanged and new awards granted by Guidewire to
retained Cyence employees:

Year ended July 31,
2017
Research and development $ 9,827
Sales and marketing $ 4,041
General and administrative $ 3,619
Total stock-based compensation $ 17,487

(s) To record the tax effects of the unaudited pro forma adjustments calculated at the statutory tax rate.
(t) Basic and diluted earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the net loss for the year by the weighted average shares outstanding. The adjustment

for weighted average shares issued gives effect to the number of shares issued that we expect to vest in the year following the acquisition. The following table

shows the calculation of EPS:



Proforma net loss

Historical shares used in computing net earnings per share
Weighted average shares issued

Proforma shares in computing earnings per share

Proforma earnings per share

Basic Diluted
(7,088) $ (7,088)
73,994,577 75,328,343
48,742 48,742
74,043,319 74,043,319
(0.10) $ (0.10)




